
 
BEAULIEU PARISH COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF MEETING ON THURSDAY 17TH OCTOBER 2019 

AT  BEAULIEU VILLAGE HALL 

PRESENT 

Cllr. F. Norris (Chairman), Cllr. C. Knight, Cllr. S. Reece,  Cllr. M. Grindrod, 

Cllr. S. Steele 

APOLOGIES 

            Cllr. P. Fairweather (Vice Chairman), Cllr. L. Shanks, Cllr. L. Dearing, Cllr. K. 

 Mans 

IN ATTENDANCE 

Cllr. M. Harris,  Mrs. R. Pearson, Mrs. E. Schofield, Mrs. N. Deering (Clerk) 

1779.   MINUTES OF LAST MEETING 

 Proposed:     Cllr. Grindrod         Seconded:  Cllr. Reece 

1780.   MATTERS ARISING 

 None 

1781. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 None 

1782.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 Mrs. Schofield said she noticed the state of the courtyard and herself and Cllr.  

 Steele worried about it.  School children will be here in the morning and  

 worried about state of steps.  Cllr. Knight said that Robert had been approached  

 by VH Committee to remove all plants but one.  Cllr. Steele said she was upset  

 about the removal of the handkerchief tree.  Cllr. Norris said it is a VH matter. 

1783.   POLICE LIAISON 

 P.C. Eastwood not present, but sent an email re drugs.  He said we have not had 

 any reports. Said drugs are a common problem in many places although I would 

 say, least of all Beaulieu.  I will always deal with what I can, but it does slide 

 down the list slightly with anything that involves risk and harm taking priority. 

 I will however bear in mind when on patrol.  Cllr. Steele said that is what we  

 wanted to hear. 

1784. HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S REPRESENTATIVES REPORT 

 Cllr. Mans not present, but sent an email regarding EU Settlement Scheme, which 

 is on the notice board and will be on the website. 

1785.   NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCILS REPRESENTATIVES REPORT 

 Cllr. Harris said we would have received an email regarding 4 days free parking.   

 Small business Saturday 7th December and 21st/22nd December to help support  

 local businesses, and one other date we can choose.  Cllr. Norris said thank you to  

 Cllr. Harris, very grateful. Said we have two events in the village, 30th November  

 8pm closure and Beaulieu Village Hall Fair with Friends of Beaulieu School,  

 Saturday 14th December 2-6pm, not confirmed, but Mrs. Schofield thinks it will  

 take place.  Cllr. Norris said he will offer it to Anne for 8pm closure.  Said shame 

 two events not on together.  Mrs. Schofield said they did try.  Cllr. Harris 

 mentioned NF Local Plan 2016-2036, to build 10,500 houses, said inspectors  

 came back and altered it to 10,420.  Under pressure from government to improve 

 housing. Regarding the water fountain said has one of their officers, Rob Lane,  



 looking to find the right appliance, vandal free.  Re Montagu Arms and parking,  

 has asked for a meeting with Steve Avery.  Cllr. Norris thanked Cllr. Harris.  

1786. PLANNING 

 19/00764 – Mares Hatch, Furzey Lane – Single storey extension, demolition of 

 existing conservatory.  Cllr. Norris said the planning officers briefing notes were 

 good.  Said proposal is bigger and contrary to DP36.  If proposed extension  

 reduced in size, would consider acceptable.  Said owners are not local and do not 

 know NP. Feels we should refuse planning permission.  All councilors agreed. 

 Tree Works 

 Hayters Mead – Prune 7 Beech Trees.  Agreed permission.   

 Cllr. Norris said Montagu Arms plans have been granted subject to lots of 

 conditions 

1787. REPLACEMENT SWING SEAT 

 Cllr. Steele said she gave up waiting for Greenspan to provide an estimate, so  

 contacted different company on line.  Found exact seat and can use our chains 

 £208.80 delivered within days.  Said Andy Shutler can put chains on.  Can we  

 authorise tonight.  Cllr. Norris thanked Mrs. Pearson for improved signage.  Said 

 concerned about Andy Shutler and H&S and public liability.  Cllr. Steele said 

 Greenspan very busy.  Can we get Andy Shutler to put it up and get ROSPA to  

 come and check it and get certificate.  Said try and coordinate for same day.   

 Councilors all in agreement. Mrs. Pearson asked if we wanted the wibbly-wobbly 

 from Museum?  Cllr. Knight wonders if the rest of the equipment is OK as getting 

 old.  Cllr. Steele suggested a sinking fund.  Maybe apply to CGT for money for 

 swing seat.  Said wood paneling that holds in chippings is rotting. 

 Proposed:   Cllr. Knight             Seconded:  Cllr. Reece 

 Cllr. Steele said next inspection will be done in next few days.  

1788. QUADRANT MEETING 

 Cllr. Norris said big meeting for NP.  Quite a lot happening.  David Ilsley gave 

 planning update on new planning document.  Important changes, landscape  

 partnership far more important now.  Outbuilding size and number of  will be  

 looked at more closely.  New buildings to be 100sq.m.  Nigel Matthews,  

 Recreation Manger spoke of relocation of car parks, move from sensitive areas to 

 outward boundaries.  Spoke of the Glover report, concerns NP and areas of 

 outstanding beauty, more money for NP, 1000 more rangers who will have more 

 powers to implement policies.  Landscape partnership, NF design project, try and 

 improve signage and branding of forest.  Bring English Nature, NFDC, FC,  

 Forestry England, get all joined up and try and standardize signage in forest.  Also 

 get message across that animals must not be fed and then enforce it.  Mrs.  

 Pearson said she will get the branches trimmed back that are obstructing the 

 40mph sign in Palace Lane.   

1789.   CORRESPONDENCE 

 Cllr. Norris said we contacted Richard Williams, speed watch officer asking if  

 there was anything we could do about speeding in Palace Lane.  He replied “I  

 think we do as much as we can at the moment because the next stage would be  

 redesigning the road.  The speed watch team goes out at least once a month, and it 

 would go out more if people would volunteer.  The roads policing team visit the 



 site as much as any other site and NFDC installs a speed indicator from time to 

 time, in fact there was one there last week. The only other way forward is to 

 redesign the road, that might mean speed humps or pinch points or perhaps more 

 signs or painting speed limit on the road.  These though are all decision to be 

made by Highways dept at HCC.  I have included the Chairman of Speed Watch  

in this email because he is the coordinator of the speed watch team in Beaulieu 

and he might have other ideas.  Its tough isn’t it because trying to change how 

people drive is almost as difficult as trying to change how and where people 

park”.  Cllr. Grindrod said he and his two sons did speed watch on Friday and said 

SLR was going off consistently.  Said Richard did not turn up, but said speed 

watch heightens people awareness. 

Mrs. Pearson said animal silhouettes being launched at Godshill tonight.  Lord 

Montagu been asked if Beaulieu Estate will put one up. 

Cllr. Norris said we had a reply from Judith Maddox, Events Manager, and 

mentioned this to Mr. Bowman as unable to attend residents meeting. 

NF Disability Grant letter.  Agreed to send £100 

Proposed:  Cllr. Grindrod                             Seconded:  Cllr. Steele 

Cllr. Norris said the fete raised £13,500 for the Common Good Trust.  We have 

received a letter to invite applications.  Agreed to apply for money for swing seat. 

Reply thanking Lord Montagu for previous years donations, successfully 

purchased a computer for the clerk, which greatly benefits the PC.  

1790. CHEQUE SIGNING 

 £746.28 – Clerks Salary 

 £3.72 – NI Contribution  

 £36.00 - BVHT  

 £125.00 – NFDC GIS Partnership 

 £100.00 – NF Disability 

 Proposed : Cllr. Reece                   Seconded: Cllr. Steele 

1791. QUESTION TIME 

 Cllr. Reece said the road at Cripplegate has huge potholes in and also level of  

 rubbish in the parish is bad.  Visitors fly tipping. 

 Cllr. Steele said there are no rings for boats to tie up at top of river.  Mrs. Pearson 

 said made a conscious decision not to replace these, but will check.   

 Cllr. Grindrod said when we get flooding by the garage where drain is blocked, 

 we need a flood sign.  Mrs. Pearson will put this on her list. 

 Cllr. Knight mentioned the dehorning of all cattle, as cows attacking people.   

 Said there was a set to in the Verderers court.  Said if cow killed someone and you 

 have public liability insurance, and have to go to court for manslaughter, you are 

 not insured against a prison sentence. 

 Mrs. Pearson asked about broadband in the village.  Cllr. Harris will chase. 

     

Meeting closed at  7.45pm. 

 

Date of Next Meeting – Thursday  21st November 2019 at 6.30p.m. in the Main 

Hall of the Village Hall.  


